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: . It is recommended that the enclosed document
entitled"Micrcphones; Policy Brief” and its accompanying
three volumes of numbered exhibits, prepared by the Research
Unit of the Research-Satellite Section in close coordination
with the Special Investigative Division, be forwarded to the
Director for his information and that this brief be updated
as required.

;;,/// The Director's views on eavesdropping by means of

electronic devices have been long-standing and openly expressed.
With regard to wiretapping, for example, the Director has
steadfastly held his ground. In public statements, in dis-
cussions with and recommendations to various Attorneys General
2nd in opinions solicited by other Government orficiais and

1 members of Congress, the Director has continued to caution

against the evil that could result through the indiscriminate

~1 nseof these devices and from the lack of tight administrative

bontrols over their operation.

0

u!g

LA

e

i
L

eg c1-£ 34
"
--lL

.

== It is apparent from the widespread press coverage

: pnd public discussion of the topic of electronic eavesdropping
{that the imprecise use of.terminology has led to misunderstand=
ng, 1if not confusion.~ Microphone surveillances are separate
~and distinct, although at times related to, technical or
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s =i &f¥elephone surveillances. The use of microphones by the FBI
'é' as been brought Into iSsue most recently in the civil suits
g |© n Las Vegas involving FBI personnel and in the Fred Black

=ase, This brief attempts to examine microphone surveillances
n detail and to trace definitively and authoritatively the A
egal problems and development of Bureau policy in this highly -
sensitive area, A separate policy brief on the subject of -
wiretapping is currently being prepared., \k'

J
This brief, then, is a study in depth ot the history .5
of Bureau policy concerning microphone surveillances, It A
traces that policy from 1938 when Bureau authority was first ..
required for their use through the eontinual dealings with thes ..
u Departament for legal guidance and counsel, It relates the . _
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significant court decisions in this area of the law, sets forth
the Department's legal advice to the Bureau, and illustrates
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Throughout this document, the Department's knowledge
and/or approval of microphone surveillances are documented,
Of particular significance are the Bureau's efforts to obtain
Departmental backing for the use of microphones involving

{ trespass after Attorney General McGrath in February, 1952,

ruled that he could not authorize them, Confronted with the
absolute necessity of using this investigative technique to
fulfill its pressing responsibilities, the Bureau began negotia-
tions with the Department culminating in a memorandum from
Attorney General Brownell on 5-20=54 which formed the basis

for the Bureau's subsequent use of microphones involving

trespass in both the security and criminal fields,

Of more recent interest the brief traces Bureau
policy through the tenure of Attorney General Kennedy and his
{drive against organized crime, It documents in detail

M», Kernedy's knowledge of and approval for microphone

surveillances in investigations of organized crime, More-
over the brief sets forth factually the knowledge of

Mr, Kennedy's staff that this technique was being used by
the FBI. Finally, the brief brings Bureau policy up to date

|through the tenure of Attorney General Katzenbach.

' In this brief an objective study in depth was
undertaken to provide the Director with a clear picture of
the development of Bureau policy involving microphone
surveillances, This brief sets forth documented facts which
willmot only defend the Bureau against criticism but also
present a positive and convincing case for the Bureau's
tightly controlled and strictly limited use of microphone
surveillances to achieve investigative coverage essential to the
national safety and welfare, _

RECOKMENDATIONS ;

1. That the enciosed policy brief be furnished to
the Director for his information. (A detailed table of contents
has been prepared for the Director's ready referral and use,
Exhibits mentioned in the brief are keyed by numbers to the
documents tabbed in the accompanying three volumes of exhibits),
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SUMKARY

Extensive file reviews disclosed only that

¥ the early use of microphones by the FBI is not recorded

¥l

in any detail, It appears that microphones were used

by the FBI in the late 1220's and early 1930's to obtain
intelligence in criminal cases, Prior Bureau suthorizae
tion for microphone installations was first required in
1538 and.since that time Bureau headquarters_has naine
tained tight control over the field in the use of these
devices,

Over the years, the FBI continually sought
legal advice from the Department concerning microphone
instellations and the admissibility of evidence obtained
from them, In the early 1940's the Department relied
on a significant Supreme Court decision, Goldman v,

United States, which held that a microphone surveillance

was not equivalent to an arch and geizure
prohibited by the Fourth Amendment. On the basis of this
decision, Alexander Holtzoff, Special Assistant to the
Attorney General), even advised that evidence obtained from
a microphone installed by trespass would be admissible,

because a microphone surveillance was not equivalent to

an illegal search and seizure,
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Recognizing the unsettled state of the law
in this area, the Department in 1946 observed signifi-
cantly, "...the operation of the FBI in detecting crime
should not be disturbed merely upon a possibility..."
Despite this comment by the Department, Bureau officials
continued to be concerned about the admigsibility of
evidence obtained from microphones involving trespass.

.In & review of existing policy on microphone
{nstallations by the Executive Conference on Jume 9, 1950,
it was noted that the Department had knowledge of the
FBI's use of microphones involving trespass in some cases.
Nevertheless, the Bureau was installing and using
microphones on its own authority--without authorization
from the Department. The comment was made that the
Bureau, in countenancing illegal activities by authorizing
gome microphones which involved trespass, was influenced
by its overriding obligations to gather intelligence
information in the security field and to safeguard the
welfare of the country.

| | In this situation, the Bureau faced a dilemna.

Although the Attorney General had authority by Presidential

| Directive to approve wire taps, he had no such
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authority in regard to microphone installations, The
Executive Conference observed that if the FBI asked

the Attorney General for authority to install micro-
phones it would, in most instances, amount to a request
for authority to engage in an illegal activity (trespass).
Obviously, it was extremely doubtful that the Attorney
General would grant such authority. Thus, to raise this
issue with the Attorney General might result, when
trespass was involved, in the loss of this investigative
technique go vital to the fulfillment of the Bureau's
responsibilities,

The over-all issue of the use of microphones
involving trespass was presented airectly to the Depariment
in October, 1951. Attorney General McGrath replied as
follows on February 26, 1952, "The records do not indicaie
that this question dealing with microphones has ever been

presented before; therefore, please be advised that 1
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cannot authorize the installation of a microphone

involving trespass under existing law,"” The Director

ordered that FBI microphone installations involving
trespass be terminated at once, This was done except
for three microphones in security cases,

Following Mr, McGrath's ruling, the Bureau
began discussions with the Department because it was
confronted with the problem of what actually constituted
trespass in the then existing law. At this time, 1952,
the Department believed that any microphone installation,
except a contact device, constituted trespass unless
approval were given by someone who coantrols the prenmises,
such as a Bureau informant,

Faced with this situation, the Executive
Conference of May 5, 1952, unanimously recommended
approval of the following which became Bureau policy:

(1) ‘that, basically, microphones be installed
without trespass; (2) that, if this is not possible, and
the intelligence to be gained 1s a necessary adjunct

to the investigation in select cases, consideration be

given to authorizing a microphone, After the Director

. >R{L



\\\\\\“conterred with Attornej General McGranery on June 6,
1952, the Attorney General authorized microphone
installations in security cases even though trespass
might be committed,

Bureau officials had regular discussions |
with Departmental Attorneys in an attempt to obtain
a modification of the Departument's strict interpreta-~
tion of what constituted trespass in the lnstallation
of microphones. These discussions were influenced by

a 1954 Supreme Court decision, Irvine v, California,

Although the Court held that evidence obtained illegally
by police from a microphone installed in a bedroom was
admissible in & state court on a gambling charge, it
described the conduct of the pnlice as."incredible.“
This led the Department io conclude that the Court
might decide the admissibility of evidence obtained by
Federal officers from a microphone by balancing their
“reprehensibieﬁ conduct against the nature of the crime
and the weight of the evidence. |

The negotiations with Departmental Attorneys

for a modification of their interpretation of trespass

iw e e mmem s me e e —ea B O T
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culminated in a memorandum from Attorney General Drownell
dated liay 20, 15954, The Bureau had previously reviewed
and approved his final draft of this memorandum. 1In

that review, it was pointed out that the memorandum

gave the Bureau a "green light" for the use of microphones
in internal security cases, Relative to ¢riminal cases,
it was noted that the Attorney General was "not as
strong but he takes cognizance of the need for micro=-
phone surveillances in cases affecting the national.

safety and indicates they should be used in only the

Followinz the receipt of this memoranduu from
Attorney Gemneral Brownell, the Director instructed that
¥r, Tolson should pass on all microphone installations
whether or not trespass was involved,

When tho Bureau's Criminal Intellicence Progran,
as it exists today, was instituted in November, 1957,
the field was instructed that no requests for technical

coverage (wire taps) would be considered, Relfing on
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1954, the Bureau urged the field to use nicrophone

survoillances in this Progran,

vi .
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The constant Bureau re-evaluation 6! policy
concerning microphone surveillances caused the Executive
Conference to again consider, on July 20, 1959, whether
the Bureau should seek approval from the Attorney General
before instituting microphone surveillances in specific
criminal cases, Ths Executive
agrecd, gnd the Director approved, that the Bureau suould
continue, as in the past, to rely upon the authority
contzined in Attorney General Brownell's May 20, 1954,
memorandum, This policy was still being followed on
January 21, 1961, when RobLert Kennedy, who had already
built a public image &8s a crusader against crime, becanme

Attorncy General and laurched an intensified Federal

drive against organized crime.

While Mr, Kennedy was Attorney CGenera
A close personal relationship with former I'BI Assistant
Director Couwxrtney Evans who not only served in a liaison
role betwcen the FBI and the Attorney General, but also
supervised the Burcau's drive against organized crime,
Through this liaison, Mr, Kennedy had an opportunity to
learn daily of the Bureau's progress in its investigation

of organized crine,

-
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Early in Mr, Eennedy's tenure as Attorney
General, his Deputy, Byron White, was furnished a memo=
rendum dated May 4, 1961, for the Attorney General's
inforrmation, This memorandum stated that the FBI policy
on tke use of microphone surveillances, with or without
tréspass. was based upon the llay 20, 1954, memorandum
from former Attorney Gemeral Brownell. It was also pointed

out that the FBI was using nicrophone coverage on a restricted

basis to obtain intelligence against organized crime,

¥hen Mr. Evans told llr. Eennedy in July, 1961,

that the FBI was not using wire taps but was using micro-

phones in its investigation of organized crime, the Lttorney
General stated that he was pleased that the FBI hac been
using microphone surveillarces in organized crime matters,

\ Mr, Kennedy's Enowledge of FBI's use of nicro=

I, ¥Yennedy, in August, 1961, requested an "appropriate

- ,a surreillance” ot -  -7xe-
gented James foffa, Mr. Eenredy was furnished daily
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another occasion, Ur, Kennedy revealed that he was
aware that the FBI used microphones when he asked
Yr, Evans to determine if the FBI had conducted a
microphone surveillance on a former Chief Counsel for
the Atomie Energy Commission,
iir, Kennedy also listened, in March, 1963,
to & tape recording in the FBI's Chicago Office., This
recording was made from an FBI microphone surveillance,
Again, when he was in the FBI's New York Office in
November, 1963, Mr, Kennedy listened to a tape recording
of & conversation between two la Coss
In both instances, the circumstances indicated that the
recordings came from FBI microphone surveillanceé.
Moreover, members of lfr, Kennedy's staff
were awarc, on a continuing basis, of the FBI's use of
nicrophones, ' For example, members of his staff were
present in Chicago and in New York City when he listened

to recordings from

Y minwmn
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of
significance, is a2 letter sent to Senator Sam J, Ervin, Jr.,
of North Carolina, by Assistant Attorney Genmeral lierbert J.
Miller of the Criminal Division on May 25, 1961, In this
letter, lr, Miller said he had learned from the FEI thgt

it was then using electroniec listening devices to obtain

intelligence regarding organized crime, Tji:5<:ff<"
‘ 0 ‘I:_
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On April 9, 1964, the Director, in a memo=
randum to Assistant Attorney General Hi}ler. stated,
”.+s28 the Department knows, this Bureau does utilize,
on & very restricted basis, electronic investigative
aids in the investigation of important matters affecting
the security of the country and in the coliection of
important criminal intelligence information relating
to organized crime,.."

¥r, ¥William Hundley, Chiel of the Department's
Organized Crime and Racketeering Section when Mr., Kennedy

was Attorney General, stated in an interview by FBI
representatives on December 30, 1965, that he had been
aware, at the time, that the FBI had been using'micrq-
phones in its investigation of the underworld "skimming
operations" from gambling receipts at casinos in
Las Vegas, and had discussed microphone coverage in
Lag Vepas with Assistant Attorney General Miller,

In regard to security matters, the FBI has
broad authority through the President's Foreign Intelli-

gence Advisory Board to collect foreign intelligence in
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Bureau policy on the use of microphone
sur#eillances has undergone several major changes
during the time Mr, Katzenback has been Attorney General,
On lMarch 30, 1965, Mr., Katzenbach requested that, in
line with similar procedures of long standing regarding
technical surveillances (wire taps), requests for esch -
nicrophone surveillance be submitted to hinm for approval,
In view of hearings being conducted by the
Long Comnittce and the pressure it was bringing to bear
on the Internal Revenue Service, the Attorney General
2
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position to state that the FPBI had no microphone coverage.
The Director, in ordering the discontinuance of all micro-

phone surveillances, noted that he realized the value of

ricrophone installations in both security and criminal
investigzations, but he had to comply with the will of

Congress and the desire of the Attorney General,

xi



Attorney General Katzenbach again authorized
nicrophone surveillances in security cases on September 27,
1965, Although he said he recognized the need for nicro-
phone surveillances for intelligence relating to organized

crime, the Attorney General stated that such coverage should

)

be linited to security cases "in the light of the present

atmosphero,"

Nowspaper and other sources have reported that

former Attorney General Kennedy allegedly stated that he

x1i1



never authorized microphone surveillances in FBI investipga-
tions of organized crime. In addition, . Katzenbach
has stated that My, Kennedy told him that he was unaware
of the FBI's use of microp 1

organized crime, Mr., Katzenbach has, however, said

“that the actions of the FBI in this area were in any
event jpstified on the basis of understandings between the
Bureau and prior (pre;lssl) Attorneys General, He added,

"I am prepared to stand behind those actions."

xiii
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DEFINITION OF TERMS

Any clear comprehension of the problems involved
in eavesdropping by means of electronic devices requires i
precise definition of the terms involved. It is apparent
from the widespread press coverage and public discussion of
this topic that the imprecise use of terminology has led to
misunderstanding, if not outright confusion. Therefore, for

the of th

e

- - - - B ame m  annd deha
ris? nd in &ccordance with Bureau
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usage since May, 1943, the following definition of terms will
be used:

Wire Tap (also “nown as Wire Tap Surveillance, Telephone
Surveillance, Technical Surveillance, Tesur)

A wire tap is the monitoring of both ends of a
telephone conversation. 1t is usually accomplished by

physically attaching a device to the telephone line.

Microphone (also "nown as Microphone Surveillance., lisur)

A microphone is a device used to eavesdrop by mean
other than wire tapping. Described below are several vari.
ations of microphones soms of which involve the use of teleph

1lines and/or equipment but do not constitute wire taps as

defined above.

xiv



Combination Wire Tap and Microvnhone

In some instances, a microphone is concealed in a
telephone instrument for the purpose of monitoring conversa
in the area of the instrument as well as both ends of the
telephone conversations, This is considered a combination

wire tap and microphone, e
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EARLY POLICY

Early Use of Microphones by FBI

Extensive file reviews disclose only that the
early use of microphones by the FBI is not recorded in
Any detail, It appears that microphones were used ﬁy the
FB1 during the 1920's

U - ::- 1:to 1920's and in the 1930's,

their use was confined to the obtaining of intelligence
information 1a criminal cases, {(Exhibitl )

Bureau Authorization First Peauired in 1938

In a memorandum from Mr, E. P. Coffey to MNr, Nathan,
dated June 3, 1938, the Technical Laboratory expressed the

opinion that the question of prior Bureau authorization for

the installation of a microphone had not previously arisen.
Mr, B, A. Tanm noted on this memorandum that Bureau author-
4zation should be obtained on all occasions, (Exhibit 2)
This requirement for prior Bureau authorization
to install a8 microphone was 1n¢orporated in the Manual of

Rules and Regulations on November 1, 1938, and read as

follows:



(. ' o “"(-)

" SECRET.

 //// |
T e ——— =/

Today, a substantially similar provision of the

Kanual of Rules and Regulations reads,

Instructions to Field, 1941, 1944

All Special Agents in Charge were advised by
letter dated September 5, 1941, that all requests for the
installation of micyophone surveillances must be made by
the Special Agent in Charge or the Acting Special Agent
in Charge and must be made telephonically to iy, Tamm
or, in his absence, to Mr. Tolson. This letter also
stated that

fcesrs,

=]

amm and Tolson would not authorize
the installation of a microphone surveillance except upon
the personal instructions of the Dircctor. ({Cxhibit 5 )
These instructions were later modified on April 22, 1944,
to permit the field to make the requests by coded teletype

or by confidential letter as well as by teletype. (Exhibite)




LEGAL INTERPRETATIONS

Supreme Court Decision in Goldman Case, 1942

An important decision involving the use of a
vas rcndercd by the United States Suprecne

#  Court on April 27, 1942, In this case, Goldnman v.

United States, the Court held that conversntions overheard
(Q)—inatalled on a wall adjoining the

defendant's room were adnissible and that the use of such

an instrument was not a violation of the Fourth Amendment's
‘provision against illcgal scarches and seizures. It is
significant to note, hovever, that the installation of

the instrument which produced the evidence did not involve
a trespass. (316 U.S. 129)

FB1 Di"tinction between Technical & Hicronhone
Surveiliunces, 1uUls

All Spccial Agents in Charge were advised by
letter dated May 15, 1943, that the term technical
surveillance would be construed to mcan a telcphone
survelllance as distinguished from a microphone surveillance.

(Exhibit 7 ) The letter stated that it was cssential that

—



W

this distinction be berne in mind when requesting
puthorization because microphone surveillances were
authoriscd by the Bureau but technical surveillances
had to be approved by the Attorney General.
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vrftten, the Attorney Gen;ral had authority by virtue
of a Presidential Directive of 1940 to approve wire
tapping. (Exhibit 8 ) This Presidential Directive is
gtill in effect today. On the other hand, the Attorney

General had not been given similar authority to approve

nicrophone surveillances at that time.

Lepal Guidance Sourht from Devartront, 1944

It i3 clearly evident that Bureau policy on
microphone installations was influenced by answers to a
geries of hypothetical questions provided in a memorandum
altzoff, Special

Asaistant to the Attorney General. (Exhibit 9 ) The

Director's inquiry which prompted Holtzoff's answers was

the first in vhat was to become & seriegs of requests aver

the years posing hypothetical situations involving the use

of nmicrophones and seeking legal advice and guidance from

the Lcpartnant.,




Pertinent portions of Holtzoff's reply were

incorporatod in a lettor to all Special Agents in Charge

dated August 15, 1044. (Bxhibit 10 ) The folleowing

pertinent quotations are taken from thig letter:

"?]l, Whore a contact nicrophone is usecd
upen the outer cxtreomities of the premizes and
where no trespass hag been made upon tho
prenisea from wiidch the inforaction is being
obtalned.' .

“"The evidence so obtained is cleér;y admigsible.

"'2, Vherc a microphone, not & contact
microphione, is placed against the innernmost
proporty line of the premises of the
individual in question. Tho type of
installation had in mind iz where the wall, |
bageboard, or cther property is gone through
frecm an adjoining room and the microphone
placed apgainst the wall, baseboard, telephone
box, ete., of the premises in question.'

“"The cvidconce so obtained is elearly admissible.

It should be borne in mind in this conncction...
that cvidenco obtained by a trespaoss not

~amounting to an unlawful search and selzure

is not rendered inadaissible meroly because

‘of tho means by vwhich it was securcd.

" ™3, VWhero cntrance is had into the
premices in qucestion with pernmigssion of the
janitor, manager, or anyone else in authority
and a nicrophone installation nade within
the confines of the roon itself. It will be
apprcciated if a2n opinion is vontured in
this rogard: 21irst, whoere the installation
is muade prior to tihoe time that the porson
actually takos posgsession of the property;
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gecond, where the installation ig nade after
the person ig actually in possession and
occupying the promises.’ ' -

"The evidonce is c¢lecarly admigalble if tha
installation ic nade prior to the time when
the subjcet actually takes possession of the
proparty. Cn the basis of thz principles
heretoforo stated, it would scen also that
tho evidence should be. adniazible even if
the installaticon is made whilce the subject
is actually in possegsion and occupying the

‘premises.

"*'4, Vhere the cxisting facilities within
the prenmiscs aro used mercly throupis a3 neans of
rewiring thz same. It is mennt by thls that no
actual nicirophone iz installod and that the
facilitics preseontly on the prenices arce used for
this purpose. It will Lo approciated in this
regard 1% you will venture an opindion: Zfirst,
where the sano i3 installed with peruaission of
the janitor, manager, or otker porson of possible
authority; sccond, where an actual trespass is
comaitted.’

"The answer applicable to case No. 3, Just
discussed, also governs the situation in case
No. 4. It is understood that rowiring does not
involve any intorception of a conversation
pas3ing over a tclephone wvire.

"¢5, TWhere an actual trespass is committed
and a micropheono installation is uade within the
confines of the premisoes in gquestion,!

"*On tho basis of tho principles heretofore
discussed, it would scem that evidence so
obtained should b2 adnissible, althoush no
preciso case decided by the courts involving
such a situvation has been found. The bamie
principlo poverningy tho situztion is tho one
horotofore digcussced, namely, that trospass
not amounting to unlawful search and scizure



does not vitiato the evidence obtained thereby
and that nmicronhone surveillconce is not
cauivalent to_un iiloqal s-oarch and seizure,®
Goldan v. Uulitoed States, Gluv U.G. 129.

L3
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15, Where a nicrophone installation is made
in a hall or room subject to pnblic hire. In this
regard it will be appreciated 1P you will oifer an
opinion in thz cvent the ingtallation is made prior

- 'to the actual hiring of the hall and afiter the
actual hiring of the hall by tho person in questien,
and where the iancstallation is made with the
perulssion of the managenent and/or 23 a result of
trogpass.!

*In all of the situations envisarmed within the
foregoing aquestion, it would seem that the evidence
is adnigsible con the vrincinle Lheoretofore discussed.
Thore is clearly no doubt as to ita adnissibilitly
in the cvent that the instaliation is made prior to
the actual hiring of the hall and with the
permiscion o tho manageuent. While the guastion

¢ 4s pot ecually clear in the other instance, it

. would scca that on the general rrinciple heretofore

. discussoed, the evidence obtainsd under all of the

! sots of facts covered by case No. 6, should be

" admissible.”

It should be empﬁasized that Mr. Holtzoff rolied

hbavily or the decision in Goldman v. United States, particularly

that porticn of the decision which held that a microphone

surveillanco was not equivalent to an 1llegal search and seizure

prohibited by the Fourth Ancndnent.

P "*Undorliﬁing added for cmphasis




Instructions to Ficld, 1944, 1945

‘ . . Tight Burcau supcrvision of technical and
microphone surveillances i3 minifest in a letter
addressqd to all Specicl Agents in Charge on November 13,

e 1944, (Dxnibit 13) It was stated in this lettor that
instructions requiring specific Burecau approval Ffoxr the
instnllotion of any technical or microphone surveillonce
were first issued in a letter to nll.Spccial Agents in
Charge on Septcmber 5, 1941, and had been brought to
their attention on sceveral occasions thercafter. These
instructions were sgain being brought to theidr aticntion
to insurc that there would be no possibility of misunder-
standing and to advise them that any deviation frcm these
instructions would result in the most drastic administrative
action,

Five months loter, on April 18, 1945, all Speciul

Agents in Charge were -again reminded that they, or the
- Assistant Special Agents in Charge, must personaily approve
all rcquests sent to thé Bureau for technical or nicrophone

surveillances. (Exhibit 12)
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Legal Guidance Obtained from Department, 1946, 1947

The Bureau's concern for close suporvision and tight
control of nicrophones is evident again in the early postwar
period. Following the pattern of presenting hypothetical
situations involving the use of microphones which had been

egtablighed by the memorandum to Special Aasistant to the

Attorney Genoral Holtzoff in 1944, the Director continued to
nake similar inquiries of the Departmont.

Assistant Attorney General T. Lamar Caudle responded
to one such inquiry by memorand; dated December 3 and December 13,
1245, (EZxhibit 13) The Dopartment's ancwers to these
hypothetical situations revealed a transformation in its
interpratation of the law regarding the admissii:ility of
evidence obtained from micyrophones.

In brief, Mr. Holtzoff had felt that the evidence
night be admissible even if a trespass were comﬁitted, because
a nicrophone did not constitute an unreacsonable search and
geizure under the Fourth Amendment. The Department was now of
the opinion that evidence against the defendant obtanined from a
microphone would not be admissible even if entry into tho
space were made under color of authority, such as with the

cooperation of a landlord or hotel manager.
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In rendering this opinion, the Department stated:

»...Heretofore in every case in which the
gearch and seizurc have been denounced and

the cvidence held inadmissible ns constituting
n violation of the rights secured by the
Fourth and Fifth Inendments there hus been

a physical trespass against the defcendant.

“"Thercfore, it would seem that where there

has been a physical trespass upon the premises
occupicd by the doefend-nt which directly
results in affording the Federal agents with
the means of listening to private convers:tious,
the evidence obtzincd by that means would be
inadnissible on the ground thzot it woas obtained
by an illegal search nd seizure. The
hypothetical situations listed by the Director
of the FBl1 pose varying degreecs of trespass.
The answers to the problems presented core

o matter of judgmnent which must be based

upon the reclationship between the trespass

and the ability to overhear the conversatiqn.“

It is worthy of note that the Departmcnt stressed
the physical aspect of the trespass involved in the
installation of the microphone. It continuced to rely on
the authority of Goldnen v, United States in stating that

there would be no violation-of the defendant's constitutional

. rights when the microphone was not installed within the

premiscs occupied hy'the defendant and there vas no trespass

on those prenmises.

o 10 -
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In rendering its opinions on theseAhypothetical

situations, the Department noted the unsettled state of
the law in this area and, where it was not sure of its
ground because there was no case in point, it observed
significantly,

" ..the operation of the FBI in detecting

crinc should not be disturbed merely upon
a possibility..."

After a thorough study of this Departmental
opinion, the Bureau incorporated the results into a
letter to A1l Special Agents in Charge dated iarch 31,
1947. (Txhibit 14)

e ]l -
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PROBLEM OF MICROPHONES INVOLVING TRESPASS

s i Review of Bureau Policy by Executive Conference, June 9, 1950

The unsettled law regarding the admissibility of
evidence obtained from microphones was obviously of
continuing concern to Bureau officials., That concern and

8 realistic ceffort to deal with this situation are reflected

in the deliberations of the Executive Conference held on
June 9, 1950. (Exhibit 19 The Conference dealt with the
, J problems inherent in the use of three types of microphone

o stsitstions: o U
—hich, in addition to monitoring

conversations in a room, overhears both sides of any
conversation on the telephone; (2) a microphone installed
in the space either occupled by the subject or im which the
subject is located at the time the conversation occurs; and
(3) a microphone located outside the space occupied by a
subject, such as a contact microphone on an adjoining wall
vhich does not involve trespass,

The Executive Conference reviewed existing policy
on these types of installations and noted that in none of the
three installations cited did the Bureau advise ihe

- 12 =
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e Department or seek authority for the installation of the

microphone¥ 1t was noted, however, that prior to the

(Q installation of a_nuthority was obtained from the
for t

neral

'Y —
£) lance because thﬁis, in reality, a form of wire
-

tap. In seeking such authority, it was also pointed out that

installation of a technicalssurveil=

the Attorney General was not advised that the particular

(< technical installation was a comb:lnation—

In discussing the various types of microphones used

by the Bureau, the conferees took note of the fact that a
microphone installed in the premises of a subject is, in maay
ingtances, illegal because the installation is accomplished
by trespass. There was also discussion on the point that all
such nicrophones might be considered illegal by the courts
even though they were installed on the premises prior to
occupation by the subject. It was agreed, therefore, that
the problem of using such microphones should be approached
under the presumption that they night be considered illegal.
On the ofher hand, it was agreed that, according to
the existing state of the law as interpreted for the Bureau

*Underlining added for emphasis
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by the Department, there appeared to be no necessity to seek
authorization from the Attormey General for the installation
of a contact microphone outside the space occupied by the
subject. This was s0 since there was no trespass involved
and, at that time, this type of installation was regarded as
legal.

The Executive Conference of June 9, 1950, observed
that the Department had, of course, indirect notice of the
Bureau's use of the microphone technique. This indirect
notice stemmed from the Bureau's requests, over the years,
for Departmental opinions as to the admissibility of eviderce
obtained in a variety of hypothetical situatioas 1n§olv1ng
the use of nicrophones. The Department also had direct
knowledge that the FBI was using microphones from the Bureau's
replies to Qquestions concerning the availlability of witnescses
and the admigsibility of evidence in some cases being
considered for prosecution. For example, a nicrophone was
utilized in the espionage case involving Judith Coplon, an
eriployee of the Justice Department.

Nevertheless, the Conference noted that, under

existing policy, the Bureau was installing and using




microphones on its own authority®*--without any authorization

from the Department--and must assume responsibility for them

il the issue
the other hand, it was pointed out that the Bureau, in
countenancing illegal activities by authorizing some micro-
phones which involved trespass, was influenced by its

overriding obligations to gather intelligence information in

the security field and to safeguard the welfare of the country.

In this situation the Bureau faced a dilemma. As
noted previously, the Attorney General had authority by
Presidential Directive to approve wire taps, but no such
authority was given to him in regard to microphone instal-
lations. The Executive Conference of June 9, 1950, observed
that if the FBI asked the Attorney General for authority to
install microphones it would, in most inétances, amount to
a request for authority to engage in an illegal activity
{(trespass). Obviously, it was extremely doubtful that the
Attorncy General, as the principal Federal law enforcement

official, would grant such authorjity, The Bureau could not

- expect him to grant such authority even though the Department

was on notice that the Bureau used microphones and

c. —
$Underlining added for emphasis :;zzé#%Eji;



it had not objected to their use. Thus, to raise this issue
with the Attorney General might result, when trespass was
involved, in the loss of this investigative technique so
vital to the fulfillment of the Bureau's responsibilities.
During the Executive Conference of June 9, 1950,

| S, P i .

a8 opposed t0 the use of
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technique known to be illegal. lr. Tolson believed that
the Bureau's position in using such technigues was untenable
and that the Bureau would have to answer to criticism for any
illegal activities. The Director commented, "I have no other
glternative g8 thie is bresented but to agree with Tolson."
Under date of July 5, 1950, a memorandun to the
Department raising the issue of using microphones involving
trespass was prepared. (Exhibit 16) This menmorandum, which
was never sent to the Department, was returned to the
Domestic Intelligence Division on April 23, 1951, with

ingtructiorns to hold it until a more propitious time.

Department's Continuing Awareness o0f Microphone Burveillances

Although the Department was not informed in writing
at that time of our upe of microphones involving trespass,
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extensive discussions were held between Bureau representatives
and officials of the Department concerning the use of micro-
phones in the cases against communist leaders then beiﬁg
prosecuted under the Smith Act. It was agreed that, whenever

[ 3 TN p — e & o o A& ___ & & _ . —_ A
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institution of criminal prosecution in any case, the Bureau

would, upon request, advise the Department in detail
concerning any telephone or microphone surveillance enployed
by the Bureau or by other Federal arencies when the latter
was known. In addition it was agreed that the Bureau would
furnish such information without a formal request whenever
it wos aware or had reasom to believe that the Department was
seriously considering prosecution. (Exhibit 19

lr. Belmont, other Bureau representatives, Ceputy
Attorney General A. Devitt Vanech, Mr. ldclnerney, and other

w""‘p' artunental a

(Exhibit 18) During this conference, Mr. Belpont asked
My, ScInerney whether there was any doubt in his wmind that
nicrophones had been used in cases involving Smith Act
subjects and that aﬁ least some 0f the microphones were
installed by trespass. Ur. McInerney replied that theu
Department was awvare that such microphones had been uséd.

- 17 =
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Issue of Microphones Involving Trespass Presented to
Department, 1lu51

-

In view of allegations made by defense attorneys
in the Smith Act cases relaiive to FBI electronic coverage
of defendants, a memorandum was sent to the Attorney General
on October 6, 1951, (Exhibit 19 ) With regard to microphones,

4hinm mpmnraﬂdnm gtated:

"As you are aware, this Bureau has also employed
the use of microphone installations on a highly

regtrictive basis, chiefly to obtain intelligence
information.... In certain inatances it hag been
possible to install microphones without trespass,
as reflected by opiniona reundered in the past by
the Depariment on thip suhaect natter. In these

b nmans dha douwPrmmadsd awm Ak maned ol oasessem e .
A03TLTLES TAC InIOTMRVION uuucu.u':u, U.I. LAIUT DY, -I-S

trecated as eviderce and thereiore ig not regarded
as purely intelligence information.

"Ag you know, in a number of instances it has not
been posszible to install microphones without
trespagss. In such instances the infornation
reieized therefrom is of an intelligence nature
only.

This Bureau memorandum concluded by presenting the
iasue in these words: ;

"...I would like to have a dofinite opinion from

you as to whether, in view of the highly productive
intelligence information gathercd from those sources,
we should continve to uytilize this technique on tho
present higchly restricted basis, or whethor we should
ccase tho use of microphone coverage entiroly in view
of the issues currently being raised.”

. L =18 -
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Attorney General McGrath responded to the Director's
request by memorandum dated February 26, 1952. (Exhibit 2¢)
He sald that the use of a microphone surveillance which did
not invol

present state of the law and cited United States v. Goldstein

(316 U.S. 129). He observed that surveillances that "involve
trespasas are in the area of the Fourth Amendment, and evidence
so obtained and from leads so obtained is inadmigsible.”

Mr. McGrath went on to say, “Thé records do not indicate that
valg gquostica dealing withrmicrophones has ever bheen preseafed

befbre; therefore, please be advised that I cannot authorize

‘the installation of a microphone involving a treapass* under

existing law."
On this memorandum the Director noted, '"See that

o ! 1]
- &
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In accordance
with the Director's instructionsg, all Special Agents in Charge
vere advised by letter datod March 4, 1952, that effective
immediately authorization would not be granted to install

any microphone surveillance involving trespass and that zany

such installation presontly being utilized ghould be

$Underlining is in the original memorandum from the
Attorney General.

/
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Department Broadens Its Interpretation of Treepaes, 1952

Following.tbs receipt of the memorandum of
Attorne& General UMcGrath dated Fobruary 26, 1252, the FEureau
was still confronted with the problem of what actually
éonstituted trespass in the then existing law. Accordirngly,

,aﬂother sot ol hypothetical situations involving microphone

surveillances was presented to the Departnent in a menorandun
dated February 28, 1952. (Exhibit 22) The Departuent's
nenorandum of reply, dated April 10, 1952, furnished a

f'tentative, but nmuch broader, conception of what constituted

treepass., (Exhibit 23) For exauple, the penetration of a
1

common wall was said to partake of the nature of a trespass.

It vas even said, in contrast to an earlier opinion, that on
installation of a microphone in the air space above the ceiling
of a room occupied by a subject now constituted trespass.
Another opinion advanced, in contrast to earlier advice, wos
that a guest in a hgtel had the exclusive use of his room and
the absolute right of privacy.




To pum up, the Department believed that any

microphone installation, with the exception of a contact
device, would constitute a trespass unless approval were
given for the installation by someone who controlled the

premises involved, such as a Bureau informant.

Retention of Three Microphones Involving Trespass in

Securi f.;g' Lanes




Buresu Inplementation of Attorney General !feGrath’s Nulin-, 1052

In view of Attorney General llcGrath's menorandun of
February 26, 1952, which advised that he could not, under
existing law, authorize the installation of nmicrophones



involving trespass, the Executive Conference met on March 14,
1952, and disgcussed Bureaun policiles to t
(Exhibit 2g)

following this Executive Conference, a letter was
sent to all Special Agents in Charge on March 26, 1952,
(Exhibit 29) They were advised that their requestg for
authority to utilize nicrOpLone survelillances must stater
that no trespass of any kind would be involved either in

the installation or maintenance of the microphone. For

guidance in deternining if trespass were involved, their

previously furnlshed to them.

Refinenent of Bureau Policy

-23 - '
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Based on the reply from the Department, coupled

with opinions previously furnished, it now appeared that it
would be possible to install microphones without trespass
only in the following instances:

¥hen Arents had legal access to adjoining property

and insgtalled a contact microphone on the outer

wall of the gpace controlled by the subject.

¥hen a nicrophone was installed within the

prenises with the knowledge and consent of the

occupant. This would apply to persons cooperating
with the Bureau, such as sources and informants.

When a nicrophone was installed in a pﬁblic hall
and the party contracting for the use of the

space did not stipulate that it would be a closed
meeting.

In analyzing the Bureau's position at that tine,
the memorandum dated April 28, 1952, stated "We have now
reached the point where we must decide whether we ghould give

i =24 -
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up microphone coverage, for that is the net result of the
Department'e rulings, or whether our responsibilities for
internal security and espionage intelligence require the
continued use of thie technique on a restricted basis despite
trespass.” After reviewing the absolute necessity for
oﬁtaining such vital information in security cases, the
menorandum concluded, "Bearing in mind the intelligence
part of our responsibilities as contrasted to thq proegecutive,
it is questionable whether we can afford to give up nicro-
phone coverage."
It was recommended in the memorandum that:

"]. We insist basically that microphone surveillances
be installed without trespass.

"2, If it is not possible to install a microphone
as above indicated, and the intelligence to be
gained therefrom is a necessary adjunct to the
investigation involved, ccasideration be given

to authorizinz the installation. These surveile
lances will be limited to an absolute ninimunm ond
will only be authorized when vitally necessary and
when prosecution is not contecmplated."

The Executive Conference of May 5, 1952, unanincusly
rocommended approval of the recommendations set forth above.
Hr. Tolson agreed but suggested that those installaticns

about which there was a legal question be reviewed. The
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Director concurred and commented, "I am inclined to dise
continue all about which there is any legal question.”
(Exhibit 3¢)

P

Attorney General !MeGranery Authorizes HMicrophones Involving
Trecepass in sccurity Cases, June 6, 1L02

The Pirector conferred with Attorney General
McGranery on June 6, 1952, concerning the problem of micro-
phone installations where trespass was involved. By way of
background, a memorandum from Mr, Belmont to Mr, Ladd, dated
May 23, 1952, had expressed the opinion that the value of
the intelligence information gathered warranted the use of
microphone surveillances even though trespass was involved.
(Exhibit 31) However, it was essential that the Bureau obtain
the backing of the Attorney General for the use of this
technique. Ur, Tolson had commented that he believed these
microphones should be removed unless the Attorney General
authorized them. The Director noted that he would speak to
the Attorney General.

In the conference with Attornmey General lcGranery
on June 8, 1953, th§ Director referred to the fact that the
prior Attorney General, McGrath, had ruled he could not approve

- 26 -
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the installation of microphones where frespass was involved.

(Exhibit 32) The Director told Attorney General HcGranery

that such installations had been utilized on & very iimited

basis by the FBI and only in cases which directly affected

the internal security of the United States.  The Director

pointed out that, after this ruling by Attorney General McGrath

on February 26, 1952, the Bureau had discontinued nearly all

of the ;1cr0phone installations which involved trespass.
Attorney General McGranery told the Director that

he thought it was entirely proper for installations of micro-

phones to be nmade 1§'uny cagse where elements were at work

against the security of the United States and that, in such

instances, where the Director felt there was a need to install

microphones, even though trespass might be committed, he

would leave it to the Director's judgment as to the steps o

take, The D .

this authority would be used only in extreme cases and only

;n cases involving the internal security of the United States.

Discussions to Obtain !Modification of Departnent's
Intexrprovation or 1Trecnacs

For almost & year following the Director's

|
gonference with Attorney Goneral lcGranery on June 6, 1952,
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Bureau officials were in regular contact with Departmental
attorneys with regard to a study the Department was making
to determine under what conditions microphone surveillances
might properly be made. The Department's approach to this
problem was outlined in conferences with Departmental
attorneys Willian Foley and Thomas Hall of the Criminal

On December 1, 1953, attorneys Foley and Hall stated
that it was apparent to them that the Attorney Gemeral, as
chief law enforcement officer of the country, could not be
placed in the position of authorizing outright trespass.
(Exhibit 33) However, bearing in mind the value of the
microphone technique in cases affecting the national welfare
and security, they felt that the Attorney General could, in
effect, throw his weighi behind the Bureau in those casete
where trespass vas a technical violation or where trespass
was arguable. Attorneys Foley and Hall stated that they
believed that the previous interpretation by the Department
as to what constituted trespass was far too restrictive.

My. Belmont and lir. Hennrich of the Bureau
suggested to attormeys Foley and IHall at this conference
on December 1, 1953, that it might be possible for the

o e . - — - - R

- 28 = '



Attorney General to send to the Bureau a memorandum modifying
the Departnent's interpretation of trespase and giving
Departmental backing for the use of microphones in situations

where there was not outright and clear trespass. Specifically,

three situations were cited:

(1) VWhere a micronhone

- S T Ar ae e e
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subject's dwelling by

ithout actual entry into the space.

(3) VWhere a microphone was placed within the
subject's room or meeting place through
actual access to the space but where such
access was gzained through the assistance
of a person having legal access to the
space, such as a landlord, hotel manager,

ot~
W W @

lr. Belmont and r. Hennrich estimated that, if

the Bureau received Departmental backing in regard to
installations of the types described, it would cover nore
than 75 per cent of the microphones the Bureau was then using
in security caseu.' They noted, however, that the Bureau
would still be in the position, in certain other exceptionil

sution was not contemplated, of needing




mnicrophone coverage despite the outrigﬁt trespass involved,
because it would be essential to the national welfare.

An interim memorandum concerning the Department's
study, dated December 9, 1953, was received from Assistant
Attorney General Warren Olney, I1I. (Exhibit 34) This

e A A e ol ol o= N
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regarding microphone gurveillances and reached conclusions,
pertinent portions of which follow:

"The evidence secured by a microphone surveillance
and accompanied by the comnission of a trespass may
or may not be admissible depenning on the view
taken by the Courts, "in balancing the ‘reprehensible’
conduct of federal agents in securing the evidence
against the nature of the c¢rirme and the weight of
the evidence, of their prerogative to exciude the
evidence by establishing a judicial rule of evidence,
as in the McNabb decision, entirely apart from
constitutional considerations.

"In conclusion, this Division is constrained to
enmphasize what is already manifest from the above
discussion and analysis, that the legal questions
posed by the hypothetical situations in your
memorandum of February 28, 1952, and related
memoranda, partake of a novel character and,
hence, are not susceptible to precise deterni-
nation on the basis of precedent or authority.
Moreover, our task, in formulating and applying
a theoretical yardstick, is made more difficult by
the distinct and continuingz conceptual conflict
within the Supreme Court itself, with respect to
the application of the constitutional safeguards
against 'unreasonable searches and seizures' and
the relative significance of an "illezal entry?

or 'trespass' in determining the admissibility or
non-admissibility of the evidence involved herein.




It is obvious, therefore, that in reconsidering
this matter and restating our views, it is
impossible to forecast with certainty the future
trends of the Supreme Court in this area and to
predict their judicial acceptability.”

Buprene Court Decision in the Irvine Case, 1954

¥hile the Department was ehgaged in its study of
microphone surveillances, a significant case was decided by
the United States Supreme Court om February 8, 1954; In
this case, Irvine v. California, (347 U.S. 123) local law

enforcenent officers, with authorization from the district
attorney, installed a microphone surveillance involving
trespasa-on the premises of Patrick E, Irvine. The police
re;enterEG Irvine's premises on two separate occasions to
chanpe the location of the microphone. After installing the
microphone in his bedroém, they were able to obtain evidence
which led to his arrest on bookmaking charges.

The United States Supreme Court, in a five to four
decision, upheld the conviction on the grounds that the
dllegally obtained evidence could be admitted in a state court

for a state crime and such admission did not violate the due

process clause of the Fourteenth Amcadment. However, the

Court strongly denounced the activities of the police and




suggested that the court record be brought to the attention
0f the Attorney General of the United States to determine if
thexre were any violations of civil rights statutes.

Of more significance to the work of the Bureau,

- howevef, was the fact that the justices, in both the majority
and dissenting opinion?, felt that the actions of the police
were “"incredible.,” This comment by the Justices recalled
the earlier opinion received from the Department in its
menorandum of December £, 1953, that the Courts night decide
whether evidence obtained by.microphone surveillance was or
vas not sdnissible by balancing the "reprehensible” conduct
of Federal ageﬁts in securing the evidence against the
nature of the crime and the weight of the evidence.




MEMORANDUM OF AUTHORIZATION FROM ATTORNEY GENERAL BROWNELL

-

Bureau Continucs to Seek Departnmental Backing, 1954

Meantime, the Burcau had not received any statement
from the Attorncy General giving backing for the use of
microphones in situations where there was not outright and
clear trespass involved. It will be recalled that such
backing had been the subject of discussion between Burecau

The Director, therefore, instructed that the
Department be pressed on this matter and suggested that
Mr, Nichols discuss it with lr. Rogers of the Department
and that Mr. Boardman discuss it with lir. Olnecy.

When lir. Nichols spoke to Mr. Rogers on lMarch 29,
1954, Ur. Rogers inquired regarding the nature of the
situations that would involve microphone surveillances.
{Exhibit 35) IMr. Nichols explained that thecy would
involve, essentially, espionage and other internal security
matters, Ilir, Rogers agreed that the Department should
back the Burcau in these matters and requested that, on
an informal basis, he be furnished with a draft covering

the Bureau's requirements,

- 33 - X



Mr. Boardman spoke to Mx, Olney and other
Departmental attorneys on March 30, 1954. (Exhibit 36 )

Mr., Olney referred to the case of Irvine v. California,

and discussed it in some detail, He coxpressed the opipion

o
ot
112

the fact that the police had installed the microphone in
the subject's bedroom and thereby exposed the private
domestic life of the occupants, The fact that the police
acted uﬁder the color of authority provided by thé
district attorney's knowledge that they had used a
nicropkone surveillance did not, Olney pointed out, soften
the Court's violent reaction., Olney added that this
decision made it even more difficult for the Department
to forecast the reaction of the couris where trespass

was involved,

to the following:

(1) that microphone coverage was nccessary
in security cases in the national interest

{2) that any cases going to prosccution must
be carefully evaluated if a nicrophone had

been used
(3) that the Department would modify its

interpretation of what conatituted trespass
in the installation of microphones

L

.
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{4) that the Decpartment would back the Bureau
in the use of microphones in security cases

(5) that the Attorney General should furnish
a memorandum to the Burcau covering points.
one, three, and four above.

_ Mr, Olney also requested fhat the Burecau furnish
the Department with an informal draft on thesc points from
which the Attorney General's memorandum would be prepared,

Among the suggestions made by Mr, Olney at this
conference on March 31, 1954, was one to present proposed
microphone installations to tne Attorney General for his
specific authority, as was being done in wire taps. At
thce same time, lr. Oluey stated that he doubted that the
Attorney General would authorize a microphone installation
involving a clear trespass.

' In his March 31, 1954, memorandum to the Director
reporting this conference with Mr. Olney, Mr. Boardman
polnted out that therce were two fundamental drawbacks in
Kr, Olney's suggestion, First, there would be occasions
- when it was imperative that a microphone be installed
immediately and thexre could be a delay in obtaininz approval
from the Attorney Gencral, Second, it was once again

doubtful that the Attorney General would anpprove a microphone

- 35 -



installation where there was clear trespass. Nevertheless,
the Bureau's responsibilities demanded that a linmited

minber of such installations be used, Therefore, the

Bureau continued to face a dilemma, It could either

install microphones on its own authority in linited
situations to obtain vital information or it could risk
losing coverapge necessary in discharging its responsibilitics
1f these requests for microphone coverage were presented to

the Attorney General and denied.

Bureau Pregents Praft llemorandum to the Denartnent

In accordance with the suggestions of lir. Rogers
and Mr, Olncy, the Bureau furnished the Department, on
April 1, 1954, a draft of the proposed nemorandua from the
Attorney General backing the Bureau in the use of microphcres
involvingz a trespass. {(Exhibit 37 )

Mr, Nichols discussed this proposed drait with
ir. Rogers on April 14, 1954. (Exhibit 33 ) Ur. Rogers
stated that, after further reflection, he did not think
much of the ddea of havin
microphone surveillances on the ground that time was of the

egsence and he thought the Attormey General would be in a

S~ ,7./1’//

i

- 36 -



much better position to defend the Bureau in the event
there should be a technical trespass if he had not
heretofore approved it."” Mr. Tolson noted, and the
Director agreed, "...we would be in a better positibn to
subnit requests to AG as we do wire taps."

Final Draft of Proposed Mcmorandum from Attorncy General
Brownell

On May 7, 1954,Mr J.VWalter Yeagley of Mr, Olney's
office furnished the Bureau a copy of the final draft for
the proposed memorandum from the Attorney General, This
proposced nemorandum would provide the Bureau with backing
in the use of microphone surveillances involving a trespass.
This final draft was reviewed and evaluated in a memorandum
from Mr. Belmont to Mr, Boardman dated May 8, 1954,

(Exhibit 39)

The final draft was approved by the‘Director,
and lr, Yeagley was advised of that approval on liay 10, 1954&,
That draft became in fact an official memorandum fronm
Attorney Gencral Brownell dated May 20, 1954, (Exhibit 40)

Jt 48 important to examine in some detail the
Bureau's evaluation of that final draft to comprehend the
intent of those who had figured in the negotiations for this

official backing from the Attorney General,

-37 =
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In his memorandum dated May 8, 1954, Mr. Belmont

set forth the following analysis of the final draft for

the proposed memorandum from Attorney General Brownell:

r
7
¢
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I

"...the Attorney General would be giving us
the grecn light for the use of microphones

in internal security* cases... (he) points
out the LBurcau has an intellirence function
as well as a duty to develop evidence for
prosecution, In the last sentence of the
memorandiwn it is stated, *I recognize that for
the IBI to fulfill its important inteclligzcnce
function, considerations of internal security
and the national saficty are paramount and,
therefore, nay compel the unrestricted use

of this technique in the national interest,’

"...velative to crininal*cases, the Attorney
General is not ag -Lrong but he takces
(:0"'1112311(28 of the nced for nlcronnone
survelllances in cases affectinz the
natlonal savoty®*and indicates they should

ve used in only the more important
investipgations.

"...The Attorney General points out the need
for discretion and intcelligent restraint in
use or microphones by the FBI in a11 cases,
1!1(-.1““1(15 lﬂbel‘ﬂul bLCUII'C_y IHJLUUI'S and

rciers L0 The IXVine CaAS€ees 4ul nttorney
General, in effect, indicates that we
should not put microphones in a bedroon

or some conparable intimate location but
.at the same tine, he points out that if
7dmportant intelligence or evidence relating
" to matters connected with the internal
security can only be obtained by such an
installation, it is his opinion that under
such circunstances the installation is prcper
and is not prohibited by the U, 5, Supreme
Court's decision in the Irvine case.

*Underlining added for emphasis
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", ..relative to trespass, each case will
be considered on its own merits but the
Department in resolving the problems which

may arise. will review the circumatances

e e Y - - T S w2 ST

in the light of the practical nccessities
of investigation and of the national
interest which must be protected.”
Mr. Belmont observed, in his memorandun of May 8,
1954, that there was no objection to the final draft of

the memorandum from Attorney General Brownell, and stated

that Bureau policy would continue to stress the necessity

for microphone installations without trespass, particularly

in cascs which might go to prosecution ;

addition, the Bureau would point out to the field that it
should avoild installations in locations such as bedroons.
With regard to crininal cases, it was noted that the some
rules would apply and care would be takem to restrict

microphone 1nstn11ntions to important cases.

i

Attorncy General Brownell Authorizes llicrophones Involving
espuss, iday 20, 1Ud4

‘4
i

. The negotiations betwecen Dureau officials and

Departmental attorneys for a modification of the interpretation
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of trespass and for Departmental backing for FBI use of
mlcrophone surveillances culminated in a memorandum from
Attorney General Brownell to the Director dated May 20,
1954. This memorandun was, as previously noted, identical
with the final draft analyzed by Ur, Belmont and approved
by the Director. Pertinent portions of this memorandum
follow:

"The recent decision of the Supreme Court _
entitled Irvine v. California, 347 U,S. 128,
denouncing the use of microphone surveillances
by city police in a gambling case makes
appropriate a reappraisal of the use which

may be made in the future by the Federal
Bureau of Investipgation of microphone
gurvecillence in connection with matters
relating to the internal security of the
country,

"It is clear that in some instances the use of
microphone surveillance is the only possible
way of uncovering the activities of espionage
agents, possible saboteurs, and subversive
persons., In such iastances, I am of the opinion
that the national interest requires that
microphone surveillance be utilized by the
Federal Bureau of Investigation., This use
need not be limited to the development of
evidence for presccution, The FBI has an
intelligence function in connection with
internal security matters equally z2s important
as the duty of developing evidcnce for
presentation to the courts and the national
security requires that the FBI be able to

use microphone surveillance for the proper
discharge of both of such functions, The
Department of Justice approves the use of
microphone surveillance by the FBI under

these circunstances and for these purposes...



".es1It 18 my opinion that the Department should

adopt that interprectation which will pernit

nicrophone coverage by the F3I in a manncr most

conducive to our national interest. I recognize

that for the FBI to fulfill its inportant

intellicence function, comnsiderationsof intcrnal

security and tho national safety are paramount

and, thercfore, may compel the unrestricted

use of this technique in the national interest,"(Exhibit 40)

Bureau Implementation of Pepartmental Authorization, 1954

After the receipt of lir. Brownell's memorandum of
May 20, )954, immediate steps were taken to insure that Bureau
policy and procedures adhered to the guidelines established
by the Attorney General, It ﬁas stressed that the FBI would
use microphones on a restricted basis in security and
important crimfnal cases, The Director instructed at this

time, "I want the same standards to prévail in this project

as prevail in the autborization of 'Technicals,' No
installations are to be aunthorized unless approved specifically
by Tolson personally," The Director emphasized that he wanted
‘Tolson to pass on all nicrophone installations whetier with

or without trespass.” (Exhibit 41)
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RIMINAL INTELLIGENCE

—— FeT)

USE OF MICROPHONES IN TOGRAM

-

Basic Policy

The Bureau's Criminal Intelligence Progranm, as it
exists today, began during the latter part of November, 1957,
following the infamous and much publicized meeting of more
than 60 racketeers at the estate of Joseph Barbaraat
Apalachin, New York, on November 14, 1957.

The planning for the Bureau~wide Criminal
Intelligence Program took place at a two-day conference,

held in Washington, D, C,, and attended by Bureau officials

and scveral Special Agents in Charge who would be expected
to play major roles in the implementation of this effort.
The original instructions, which were sent to all
f£1cld offices on Novembexr 27, 1957, outlined the general
avenues of investigation and the goals to be achieved in
establishing broad intelligence coverage of organized crinc
in this country. (Exhibit 42 ) These instructions stated,

— e
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ctions must be fully complied with in

the utilization of highly coanfidential sources or microphone
surveillances, No requests for technical coverare (wire taps)

will be considered,.™*

$Underlining added for emphasis ////
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In the implementation of the Bureau's Criminal
Intelligence Program, the field was urged to use microphone

&

n Charge

surveillances., For example, all Special Agents
were instructed by letter dated June 11, 1959, to be alert
for situations in which extraordinary and confidential
investigative techniques could be employed to advantage.
(Exhibit 43 ) This letter cited a microphone surveillance
as a good example of a highly confidential 4nvestigative
technique which had already provided extremely valuable
information concerning the activities of a notorious

New Jersey hoodlum., The letter specifically pointed out
that it would be necessary that aggressiveness, initiative,
and good judgment be exercised so these techniques would

be utilized in well=agelected situationa,

Revicw of Microphone Utilization in Criminal Intellizence Prozranm

In compliance with a request from iIr, Tolson,
Kr. Belmont examined the microphone surveillances being
used in the Criminal Intelligence Progran and reported his
findings in a memorandum to Mr. Tolson dated July 2, 1938.
{(Exhibit 44 ) In this regard, Mr. Belmont revicwcd the

developrnents leading to Attorney General Brownell's memorandum




of May 20, 19354, Mr. Belmont pointed out that FBI authority

for the use of microphones in criminal cases evolved from

emorandum iAn which he

stated, "I recognize that for the FBI to fulfill its
important intelligence function, considerations of internal
security and the national safety are paramount and, therefore,
may conmpel the unrestricted use of this technique in the
national interest.,"” By way of explanation, Mr. Belmont
stated:

"It is noted that the use of the tcrminology
*national safety' was interpreted by the
Bureau to include criminal cases, particularly
a8 in the AG's letter he uses terminology
such as the "necd for discretion and
intelligent restraint in the use of micro-
phones by the FBY in all case__ﬁincluuinn
internal security maiters.' it appears,
therefore, that the AG's letter, while
prinmnarily directed toward security matters
ag thls was the basis on which the issue
was raised with the Department, used
terninology which was interpreted by the

Pyawanis *a arnnle o Audeoadnal a1t N
APl T W vv ﬂy‘l‘-, .v "‘ e Lol AL & \-GDGB GB 'c“.

Executive Confcrence Affirms Interpretation of "Hational
Safetz_“ o

On July 20, 1959, the Executive Conierence zagein
considered the question of seeking approval from the Attorney

*Underlining added for emphasis
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general before instituting microphone surveillances in
specific criminal cases, As a result of this deliberationm,
the folloving summation, approved by the Director, was
nadet

"The Executive Conference considered whether
existing policy with reference to installation
of microphone surveillances should be changed
at this time or whether we should re-present
thi's nmatter to the AG for reaffirmation of
Departmental policy as set out in the AG's
menorandum of 5/20/54, It was the belief

of the Executive Conference that the language
of the AG's 5/20/54 memorandum covered both
Security and Criminal pattersi that we are
adequately protected by this opinion of the
AG, supported by that of ir. Rogers in his
discussion of this matter with lIr. Nichols

on 4/27/54. ‘The Executive Conference
unaninously agreed that as loung as

¥r. Rogers continues as AG this matter not

be represented but that we proceed as in the
past on the strercgth of the 5/20/54 memorandum."
(Exkibit 45)

Reminder to Fleld VTThere Trespass Involved

By letter dated January 22, 1960, all Special
Agents in Charge were reminded that whenever they requested
authority to install a microphone surveillance conplete
details of the proposed :I.nstallﬁtiou nust be furnished to
the Bureau and they must point out specifically whether

trespass would be involved and whether the microphone would
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be installed in the telephone or a telephone instrument
would bo used in any way. (Exhibit 4 ) The letter
atressed that all Specinl Agents in Charpe must continue

to supcrvise personally all microphone surveillances,
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TENURE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL ROBERT KENNEDY, 1961-1964

Overall Bureau policy on microphone surveillances
which developed from the authority granted in ‘Attorney General
Herbert Brownell's memorandum of May 20, 1954, was still being
followed on January 21, 1261, when Robert F. Kennedy was sworn
in as Attorney General.

Crusader Arainst Organized Crime

For a number of years prior to January 21, 1961,
Mr. Kennedy had built a public image as a staunch crusader
against organized crime., He . had served as counsel for the

Senate Committee which investigated labor racketeering. He

he warned, "If we do not on a national scale attack organized
crininals with weapons and techniques as effective as their
own, they will destroy us." (Exhibit 49)

In November, 1960, Mr. Kennedy appeared on the
television program, "Meet the Press." (Exhibit 50) During
this program, he said that something must be done about
- organized crime, and mentioned the meeting of the Nation's top
hoodlums at Apalachin, New York. Mr. Kennedy, in discussing
what would be done with organized erime if John F. Kennedy were
elected President, noted that Federal agencies did not at that
time have intelligence coverage in the organized crime field
a8 was maintainod in the field of communism, and said that the

situation would be changed. Qe




After he became Attorney General, Mr. Kennedy made the
following statement, "...We are nowv treating organized

crime as the Federal Bureau of_!nvestigation has treated
communism over the period of the last 30 years." (Exhibit 51)

. Mr. Kennedy's crusading tactics againat organized

1

- - —‘—————-i

Robert F. Kennedy, when he was named Attorney General, was
that he would exert himself as a ‘crime buster.'"
Mr. Kennedy did, indeed, exert himself against organized
crime. Shortly after he took office he made it clear in
his public utterances that he would conduct a concerted dfive
against organizedﬁdfime in his new position. (Exhibit 52)
Earle in 1981, Mr, Kennedy moved to enlist the
combined torées of several Federal investigative agencies
for an intensified drive against organized crime. To
coordinate this concerted'effort, Mr. Kennedy used the
Organized Crime and Racketeering Section of the Department
 of Justice. The FBI had, of course, major responsibilities
in this prdgran.

¥r, Kennedy Infarmed Internal Revenue Service Plannad lse
oY Electironic AIds

On February 16, 1961, M¥r, Kennedy held a

he Treasury Depariment. In

a4

iuncheon conference at

attendance at this conference were Secretary of the

Treasury Douglas Dillon, Commissioner of the Internal




Revenue Service Mortimer M. Caplin.’the Diréctor, and

other officianls, Mr. Kennedy outlined at this conference

the program which he ﬁld_iq_nind for making inroads into

organized crime. (Exhibit 53

"As part of the proceedings, Mr, Caplin presented

for the examination of Mr, Kennedy and the Director copiles
“of imstructions he yﬁd issued to investigative personnel

of the Internal Rgvenue Service concerning the responsi-

bilities of that agency in the drive against organized crime.
o These instructions, entitled "Speclal Racketeer

Invesfigations," were enclosed in a iette} from Mr, Caplin

to Mr, Kennedy which Mr, Caplin delivered personally to

Mr. Kennedy that day. This documgnt nade specific reference

to planned use of electronic aids in investigation of leading

racketeers by the Internal Revenue Service. Page two of

use will be made of available electronic equipment and other

technical aids, as well as such investigative techniques as

surveillances, undercover work, etc."

Mr. Xennedy Advised of Burezsu's Plans Against Organized
Crime

In a memorandum dated Apill 6, 1961, the Director

was informed about conferences with selected Special Agents

in Charge held in connection with the intensification of the
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Criminal Intelligence Program, In this memorandum it was
noted that the Bureau had previously furanished Attorney
General Kennedy, for his information, instructions to Bure:
field offices contained in letters to all Special Agents i)
Charge dated Harch 1 and March 30, 1961, (Exhibit 54 )
.The letter of March 1,
Bureau office had the'obligation to establish "that type
pf coverage'" on the criminal uﬁderworld which the Bureau h;
Aachieved in its investigations of the Communist Party. By
_way of exp}anation, the letter stated that the techniques
which had }rovad g0 invaluable in the internal security fi.

/
must be carefully considered and adapted wherever feasible

to the present policy regarding technical surveillances.
(It will be recalled that Bureau policy prohibited the use
technical surveillances in the Criminal Intelligence Progr:
It wvas stated in the memorandum of April 6, 1961
that the Bureau had not yet advised Attorney General Kenneq
in writing about the "crash program" to make cases in the
ainst ten teo

Concerning this, the Director noted, "1 ve orally advise

A.G. of plans we have in mind,"”
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Deputy Attorney General White Informed of Bureau Policy
Concerninn llicronhones, Lay 4, ISco1

Early in 1961, Attorney General Kennedy had agre
to testify concerning proposed wiretap legislation being
considered by the Senate Judiciary Subcommittee. On
April 26, 1961, a meeting between Departmental representat:
and Assistant Director Courtney Evans was held in the offi
of Deputy Attorney Gemeral Byron White to formulate a
position on this legislation for the Attorney General.
(Exhibit 55 )

During the discussion it was pointed out that th:
Attorney General should also be prepared to answer quastio
concerning other phases of "eavesdropping," including the
use of microphone surveillances. To assist the Attorney
General in this regard, the Bureau d elivered a memorandun
This memorandum stated that the Bureau's views on the use
microphone surveillances in FBI cases were being furnished
in connection with the Attorney General's contenmplated
appearance before the Senate Subcommittee on Constitutiona

Rights. Pertinent portions of this memorandum of May 4, 1!

follow:
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"Our policy on the use of microphone surveillances
is based upon a memorandum from former Attorney
General Herbert Brownell dated May 20, 1954, in
which he approved the use of microphone surveil-
lances with or without trespass, In this memo-
rapdun Mr, Brownell saild in part:

"1 recognize that for the FBI to fulfill its
important intelligence function, considerations of
internal security and the national safety are
paramount and, therefore, may compel the unre-
stricted use of this techrnique in the national
interest.'

"In light of this policy, in the internal security
field, we are utilizing microphone surveillances

on a restricted basis even though trespass is necessary
to assist in uncovering the activities of Soviet
intelligence agents and Communist Party leaders,

In the interests of national safety, microphone
surveillances are also utilized on a restricted basis,
even though trespass is necessary, in uncovering major
criminal activities. We are using such coverage in
connection with our investigations of the clandestine
activities of top hoodlums and organized crime., From
an intelligence standpoint, this investigative techniqu
has produced results unobtainable through other means,
The information so obtained is treated in the same
manner as information obtained from wire tans, that

is, not from the standpoint of evidentiary value but
for intelligence purposes,"

“There is no Federal legislation at the present
time pertaining to the use of microphone surveil-
lances, The passage of any restrictive legislation
in this field would be a definite loss to our
investigative operations, both in the internal
security field and in our fight againat the
eriminal element., This is especially true in the
case of organized crime where we have too few
weapons at our command to give up the valuable
technique of microphones.'



Since this memorandum was furnished to the Deputy
Attorney General for the specific use of the Attorney Genera
it was official notice to Mr., Kennedy and to the Department
of Justice of the Bureau's policy concerning the use of
microphone surveillances, Moreover, it spelled out that the

Bureau had interpreted Attorney General Brownell's letter

*
of May 20, 1954, to give it authorization for use of
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microphone surveillances in criminal cases., If there were
disagreement with this interpretation, the Bureau should

have been so advised at that time.

dlr, RKennedy Pleased About FBI Microphone Coverage

On July 6, 1961, Mr. Kennedy held a conference of
attorneys in the Department's Organized Crime and Racketceori
Section as the concluding phase of aﬁ inquiry he had been
conducting on the activities of this Seétion. Assistant
Director Evans, who was present at this conference, wzs
asked by Mr. Kennedy about "electronic devices,” similar to
those used in espionage cases, in the investigations of crgs
ized crime. Since there were a number of people present,
Mr, Evans made a general reply which con&eyed the message
that he would discuss this matter with the Attorney General

under more appropriate circumstances. (Exhibit 57)
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In a memorandum dated
recorded Mr., Kennedy's remark, noted that there was
serious question as to.whether the Attorney General was
‘aware of the difference bhetween a technical and a
microphone survelllance, and asked for permission to

- : discuss this subject with the Attorney General. The
Director approved, and Mr. Evans saw Mr. Kennedy in
regard to this_patter on July 7, 1961. Mr, Evans
reéorded this‘discussion with the Attorney Géneral in
a memorandum dated July 7, 1961. (Exhibitss ) The

following pertinent quotation is taken from this
menorandum:

"It was pointed out to the Attorney General
that we had taken action with regard to the
use of microphone surveillances in these
cases (organized crime investigations) and
while they represented an expensive inves-
tigative step, we were nevertheless
utilizing them in all instances where

this was technically feasible and where
valuable information might he expected.

The strong objections to the utilization

of telephone taps as contrasted to
microphone surveillances was stressed. The
Attorney General stated he recognized the
reasons why telephone taps should be
restricted to national-defense-type cases
and he was pleased we had been using
microphone surveillances where these
objections do not apply wherever possible
in organized crime matters.”

[
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By the time that Mr. Kennedy had become
Attorney General, the Bureau had learned from its

experience with the Criminal Intelligence Program that

A

the single, most productive intelligence-gathering
technique had been microphone surveillances of selected
underworld figures,
Many of these microphone surveillances used
() N - -oqsuit the information
obtained to an FBI monitoring center. These—
(QI -d:ld not, however, constitute a wire tap or
() technical surveillance. These-re similar
1o "open lines" used by stockbrokers and music companies
to transmit information and music from one location to
another. It was normally possible for the FBI to make

oral arrangements with the telephone company involved
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‘ To obtain 8 authorization from Attorney

General Kennedy, s memorandum on FBI statiomery,
classified "Top Secret," dated August 17, 1961, and
enclosing the proposed letter to the telephone company
in New York City, was delivered to Mr, Kennedy on

August 17, 1961, by Assistant Director Courtney Evans.
(Exhibit go

[ e R

complete text of this memorandum, which was signed by

Mr. Kennedy:
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The very first sentence of the memorandum of

August 17, 1961, which lir, Kennedy approved, stated

that it is frequently necessary to—

—ln order to monitor microphone

éf

surveillences. The memorasndum also stated that these
situations occur when it is8 impossible to locate a

ty of th

1
secure monitoring point in the immediste vicind

——— e — = ek

prenises covered by the microphone. On its face, there-
foro, this document informed former Attorney General
[}

Kennedy of the procedures and problems involved in

iicrophono surveillances which were broader in scope

- than the specific issue presented in regard to

New York City.




By affixing his signature to this memorandum,
it i8 clear that former Attorney General Kennedy was
not only authorizing the use of microphone surveillances
in the Criminal Intelligence Program in New York City
but was also acknowledging tbat he was on notice that
these microphone surveillances were used frequently
and in several situations by the FBI elsewhere,

On December 24, 1965, Assistant to the Director
Del.oach and Assistant Director Gale interviewed former
Assistant Director Evans about vhat had transpired
when he took this memorandum to Attorney General Kennedy
on August 17, 1961, During this interview, Mr. Evans
recalled that he described fully thelfi NG
n cqnnection with microphone surveil-
lances, not only in New York City, but also elsewhere.
Mr. Evans state& that there was no doubt in his mind
that former Attorney General Kemnedy was fully aware that

© tho o1 voo R

top hoodlums. (Exhibit g1

Mr, Kennedy Requests "Appropriate Surveillance" of

During the Summer of 1961, information had come
to the attention of Mr. Kennedy that Teamster President
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James Hoffa allegedly had sources inside the Criminal
Divigion of fhe Department of Justice. He also learned
e
Mr. Hoffa, planned to be in Washington, D. C., on

August 7, 1961, to meet with his "contact" in the

Justice Department. Sincef N 2d no known

official business with the Justice Department, Mr, Kennedy
felt that this would be a surreptitious contact with one
of Mr. Hoffa's alleged sources in the Department,

Mr. EKennedy requested the FBI, through
Assistant Director Evans, to conduct an appropriate
surveillance off P -i1c he was in Washington
in an attempt to determine the identity of any Department
of Justice employee he contacted. (Exhibit 62)

In a memorandum dated March 13, 1962, Mr. Evans
referred to Mr. Kennedy's request for an "appropriate
surveillance” off S explained that while
"appropriate surveillance" did not explicitly describe
the surveillance requested by Attorney General Kennedy,
there was no question but that the Attorney Genersal's
request meant both a physical surveillance and a
microphone surveillance oﬁotoi room,
According to Mr. Evans, it was understood that this
investigation was to be discreet but that t!}




Attorney General wanted all steps possible to be taken
d:.o deternine it =2de contact with anyone

in the Justice Department, Mr. Evans added that the

results of the microphone surveillance were reported
to lr. Kennedy in daily memoranda as the information
was received. (Exhibit g3)

¥r. Kennedy Inquires About Possible FBI Microphone
Surveillances

On March 30, 1962, Mr. Kennedy summoned
Mr, Evans to his office and told him that Joseph Volpe,
formerly Chief Counsel for the Atomic Energy Commission,
had informed the Attoraey General that he had learned on
the "highest authority" that Volpe's office had been
covered with a microphone surveillance during 1953 and
1954, Mr. Kennédy asked Mr. Evans if this had been an
FBI microphone surveillance. Mr, Evans later reported
to the Attorney General that this was not an FBI
zicrophone surveillance. It is noteworthy, however,
that Mr, Kennedy's query rqveals that there was little
doubt in his mind that the FBI used microphone

surveillances. Moreover, whatever doubt there may have
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Mr. Evans to check on the matter befors reporting to
Mr. Kennedy that it was not an FBI microphone

surveillance. (Exhibited )

Mr. Kennedy Listens to Tewe Recordings of FBI Microphone

Surveillances

L —————__

/)IV) Y - - -t o

If there were any remaining doubt in
Mr, Kennedy's mind that the FBI was using microphone
surveillances, it should have been dispelled during two
visits he made to FBI field offices, On March 19, 1963,
Mr, Kennedy was briefed‘on organized crime investigations

in the FBI's Chicago Office. This briefing was attended

by other Departmental officials, including Willian

Hundley, Chief of the Organized Crime and Racketeering
c? the FBI tcld thenm
about the corruption of local law enforcement officers
by Chicago hoodlums, a tape recording from an FBI

microphone surveillance was played for them. This

recording contained a discussion between th<{jjjjj NN

the Chicago Police Department,
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During the playing of this tape recording,
both Mr. Kennedy and Mr. Hundley interrupted from time
to time to inquire as to the identity of a particular
speaker. The voices involved in the conversation were
identified for them. Also during the playing of the
tape, or immediately thereafter, Mr. Hundley asked whether
the FBI had a "tech" in a particular establishment which
he named. He also asked if "techs" were legal or illegal,.

Mr. Kennedy then stated

——— - — b |

"They're all illegal.”

Mr, Hundley also asked where the installation
was located from which this tape regording was obtained.
Mr. Kennedj stated that he did not believe that he wanted
to know the exact location of the installation.

Following the playing of the tape, Mr. Kennedy asked
whether or not the Chicago Police Department was aware
of the information contained in this tape. He was told
that it was not.

This conference in the FB1's go Office
lasted several hours longer than was originally intended.
Following the cbnrarence and again at the airport prior
to his departure from Chicago, Mr., Kennedy said to;

Mr. Marlin Johnason, Special Agent in Charge of the FBI's
Chicago Office, that he was extremely impressed with
the Chicago Office's investigative work against
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organized crime, and stated that he 'anted the Chicago
Office to keep up its extensive and intensive
investigations in this field. i
The Special Agents involved in this Chicago
conference have submitted sworn statements concerning
what transpired at the conference, including what
Mr, Kennedy said. (Exhibit 65)
' After he returned to Washington, D. C.,
¥r, Kennedy sent a letter to Mr., ¥arlin Johnson in
which he said that he appreclated the fine presentaticn
made by Mr, Johnson amd his Agents during his visit
to Chicago. Mr. Kennedy added that the presentation
was well organized and "very informative," (Exhibit
In regard to this conference in Chicago,
Mr. Hundley told Assistant to the Director DeLoach and
Assistant Director Gale on December 30, 1965, that it
was obvious to him at the time of the conference that

the recording was obtained as the result of microphone

coverage. He stated that he could not, of course, say

n
to the recording, and theré was no open discussion of

the fact that the recording came from microphone




coverage. He did say, however, that he felt that
this was generally understood., (Exhibit 67)

On another occasion, Mr. Kennedy visited the
New York Office of the FBI for a briefing on organized
erime. Participants in this conference, held
November 4. 1563, wvere Mr. Kennedy, ¥r. Ed Guthman of
Mr, Kennedy's Staff, Assistant Directors Courtney Evans
and John F, Malone, and approximately 25 FBI Special
Agénts assigned to the New York Office. At fhis
conference, a tape reco:ding taken from an FBI microphone

surveillance was played for Mr, Kennedy. The taped

conversation was betweon{i NG - SN
£ notorsous noou -

gangland murder was the subject of the conversation

A

hatween these tvw Since the

recorded conversation was, at times, difficult to

understand, Mr. Kennedy was provided with a written

transcript to assist him in following the conversation,
.Because there was some difficulty in under-

standing all of the recorded conversation, Mr, Kennedy

asked if this were the best equipment the Bureau had.

In reply, Special Agent{NNENN:-crortedly satd
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that these individuals do not always meet in the most
desirable locations and, no matter how good the equipment
is, it cannot overcome the problem of guttural voices and
whispered conversations, such as were on this tape

- recording.

Special Agents of the FB81 who participated in
this conference have submitted sworn affidavits as to what
transpired, including the question asked by Mr. Kennedy.
(Exhibit 68 )

Evidence Mr., Kennedy's Staff Vas Aware of FBI Use of
Microphone Surveillances

In addition to Mr, Kennedy's personal involve-
ment in matters relating to microphone surveillances,
members of his Staff were, in specific security and
criminal cases, on notice that microphone surveillances
wore used by the FBI. The following are typical
instances:

(1) On May 25, 1961, Herbert J. Miller, Jr.,
Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, Department
of Justice, sent a significant letter to Semator Sam J.
Ervin, Jr., of North Carolina, The following is the
complete text of this very revealing letter:



*Thank you for your letter of May 19, 1961

"] have been advised that as of February 8, 1960,
the Federal Bureau of Investigation maintained
78 wiretapa.

"You also request information ‘relative to the
nature and extent of tho use of electronic

eavesdroppring apparatus by agents of the

- Departnent of Justice.' 1 have checked with the

Fedoral Bureau oi Investigation and, as in the
caso of wiretanping, ths tochnique of electronic
listaninﬂ devices is uced on a highly restricted
basis. The Federal Bureau of Investigation has
67 of these devices in operation. The nmajority
are in tho fiold of internal security with a few
tsed to cobtain intellisence information with
rexard to or~anizod crine.®

“The Department feels the information in the

third paragraph should remain confidential.

However, whather the information should be made
public is left with your discretion." (Exhi (Exhibit 69 )

*Underlining for added emphasis

#*Digcontinued because of pending prosecutive action under
Internal Security Act of 1950.

A\
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{(3) On August 16, 1962, Mr. William Foley,
Acting Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, was
orally advised by FBI representatives that the Los Angeles

Office of the FBI had a microphone surveillance on

- —as closely allied with the "skimming

operation" involving the flow of illegal diverted funds
from Las Vegas gambling casinos to the leadership of
La Cosa Nostra and otber top racket element-vas
being considered for prosecution on an obstruction of %
justice charge. (Exhibit 71) o
(4) On A'p:ril 23, 1963, Assistant Attorney Geueral
Herbert J. Miller of the Criminal Division was orally advisec
that the FBI had microphone coverage of several of the
subjects involved in the caseiet
al. This was a large-scale bookmaking operation in
Kansas City, Missouri, (Exhibit 72)
(5) Omn July 11, 1963, Assistant Attorney

General lliller was orally advised by FBI representatives

that & microphone surveillance coverinz{ NG

— in Las Vegas, Nevada, had been compromised.

under subpoena to a Federal Grand Jury in Los Angeles,

¢
J
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California, probing the activities of | NG

a key fig-ure-in the "skimming operation” at Las Vegas.
(Bxhibit 73)

(6) On March 6, 1964, Assistant Director Evans
orally advised Assistant Attorney General Herbert Miller

- that the FBI had microphone surveillances on—
S -t :vities in Philadelphia, PennsylvaniafNEEN

as Attorney General Kennedy knew, was a member of{j ]I

of a case involving Interstate Transportation in Ald of

Racketeering-Extortion, and was awaiting trial. Assistant
Director Evans also told lir. Miller on March 6, 1964, that
the FBI had microphone coverage on the (NN --
illegal gambling casino in Hot Springs, Arkansas, inas-
much as there was a possibility -of Federal Grand Jury
inquiry into prevalent illegal gambling in that city.
{Exhibit 74)

(Z) A memorandum dated April 9, 1964, entitled
"Electronic Surveillance” was sent from the FBI to
Assistant Attorney Genexral Miller. Mr, Miller had fore
warded a copy of a Departmental memorandum on the aubject

of electronic surveillances, which proposed that the




Department undertake a survey of equipment being used
and a legal study of this matter. Mr. Miller had asked,
in his letter of transmittal, that the FBI comment on
this proposal. The Director's memorandum to Mr. Miller
stated that such a study was not believed desirable
principally because it would disclose confidential
investigative techniques, The Director's memorandun
v
also stated:
"...a8 the Department knows, this Bureau does
utilize, on a very restricted basis, electronic
investigative aids in the investigation of
important matters affecting the security of
the country and in the collection of important
criminal intelligence information relating to
organized crime, as well as similar investiga~
tive matters involving the safety and well-
being of a victinm such as in kidnapping cases,
"In such matters, the Department is aware that
these electronic investigative aids have proven

to be useful in the past and continue to be
very helpful at present.” (Exhibit 75)

Since criminal intelligence information relating
to organized crime was not one of the categories for which

the Attorney General could approve a technical surveillance

(wire tap), the reference to "electronic 1niestigat1ve
. !

.....

interpreted by the Depariment to @ meani microphone
surveillances . insofar as criminal intelligence matters

were concerned,

f | | 1
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(8) Mr. William Hundley, Chief of the

Organized Crime and Racketeering Section of the Department
of Justice, who also served in this position ﬁuring the
time Mr, Kennedi véé the Attorney Generél, discussed
his knowledge of FBI microphone surveillances with

< '~ Assistant to the Director Deloach and Assistant Director
Gale on December 30, 1965. 1Iir. Hundley ststed that he
hag been aware that the FBI had been using microphones
in its investigaticn of the underworld "skimﬁing
operations” pertaining to gambling receipts from casinos

in Las Vegas. Mr, Hundley said, "You cannot be in this

business as long as I have been and read the F3BI reportis

concerning skimming without knowing that this type of

informationr had to come as a result of microphone
coverage." (Exhibit 7g)

Mr. Hundley also stated that he had never
discussed this with former Attorney General Kennedy but
that he had discussed microphone coverage in Las Vegas
with former Assistant Attorney General Herbert J. Hiller
who was head of the Criminal Division while kr. Kennedy
was the Attorney General., Hundley added that he had

several discussions with lMr, Miller concerning

-7 '
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microphone surveillances in Las Vegas after a leak of
information in March, 1963, resulted in the exposure of
an FBI microphone surveillance at the Fremont Hotel in
Las Vegas,

Civil Suits in Las Vepas Involving FBI Microphones

Following the discovery in March, 1963, of the
FBI microphone surveillance in the office of Edward
Levinson, President of the Fremont Hotel in Las Vegas,
Nevada, a civil suit was brought on February 26, 1964,
by Levinssn and the Fremont Hotel against the telephone
conpany in'Las Vegas, Although this sult was dismissed
with prejudice on May 20, 1965, another civil suit was
instituted on December.10, 1965, against the telephone
company and the Special Agent in Charge, the Assistant
Special Agent in Charge, and two Special Agents of the
Las Vegas Office of the FBI. (Exhibit 77)

The Fred Black Case




prime importance in the Bureau's over-all efforts to
combat organized crime,

During the time that Mr. Kennedy was
Attorney General, information was developed that
Washington lobbyist Fred Black, because of his known
connections with individuals who served as couriers in
the "gkimming operation," appeared to be personally
involved in this flow of funds to La Cosa Nostra. As
part of this investigation, & microphone surveillance
was instituted on Black at the Sheraton~Carlton Hotel,
Washington, D, C., on Febrhafy 8, 1263. (Exhibit 78)

During an interview with Bureau offricials on
June 2, 1966, former Assistant Director Evans stated
that while Mr. Kennedy was Attorney General he had briefed
Mr, Kennedy on the Black investigation. Mr, Evans further
stated that on one occasion he furnished Mr. Kennedy
information which could only have come from a microphone.
He added that the Attorney General could well have inferred
the usage of microphones as a result of receiving this
information. (Exhibit 98)

On the basis of an investigation conducted by

the Internal Revenue Service, Black was convicted in the
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United States District Court, Washington, D, C,, on

May 5, 1964, for violation of Federal income tax laws,
The conviction was upheld in the Court of Appeals and the
United States Supreme Court denied certiorari.

Subsequently, on May 24, 1966, United States
séllcitor General Thurgood Marshall filed a memorandum
before the Supreme Court advising the Court that there
was an electronic surveillance of Black and that .
conversations between Black and his attorney had been
intercepted. As a result of lr, Marshall's memorandun,
the Supreme Court requested additional details concerning
the electronic coverage of Black.

Almost two weeks before Mr, Marshall's
memorandum was filed, Assistant to the Director Deloach
and Assistant Director Gale had, on May 11, 1966, brought
to the Department's attention the pitfalls involved in
s0 advising the Supreme Court. The Department was told
that the results of the conversation between Black and
his attorney had not been disseminated outside the Bureau,
Therefore, the prosecution was not aware of the moanitoring
:iiﬁ did not, of course, useit against the defendant.

Furthermore, no motion had been made by the defense to
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determine if the Government had microphone coverage.
In addition, the monitoring occurred approximately one
felr hefore the trial and involved an attorney who did
not appear as an attorney of record. Finally, the
disclosure would trigger unwarranted criticism of the
FBI and the Department and could come &t an inappropriate
time in view of the pending case against Bobby Baker
and the civil suilt in Las Vegas. Despite these cogent.
arguments, the Department filed the memorandum so it
would have "clean hands." (E;hibit 93)

The Department also wanted to have ''clean
hands" on the matter of authorization for microphone
surveillances, Attorney General Katzenbach had, in a

conference on May 23, 1966, attended by Assistant

footpote stating "there was general Departmental
authorization of longstanding for the use of these
devices.” On the following day, the Attorney General

had this footnote deleted from the memorandum,

(Exhibit 94)

As of July 11, 1966, this matter was still
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(Exhibit 79 )
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On July 16, 1964, the Director, in a telephone
conversation with the President, discussed the FBl's

investigation of events surrounding the murder of

Negro educator Lemuel Penn on a Georgia highway.
(Exhibit 8@ During this telephone conversation, the

Director told the President that the FBI had installed
a microphone in a building next to the garage where
Klansmen gathered in Athens, Georgia.
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DEPARTULNTAL POLICY ON MICROPHONES

AL [ F VIO B Lat Ladda

Review of Bureau Policy, October, 1964

In the interimn period from the resignation of
{Etorney General Kennedy on Septenber 3, 1964, to the
gwearing in of Attorney General Nicholas deB. Katzenbach
on February 13, 1965, existing Bureau policy concerning
special invesgtigative techniques, including mierophones,
was reviewed. The results of this review were set forth
in a memorandum from former Assistant to the Director
Belmont to Associate Director Tolson dated October 6,
1964, (Exhibit82) |

In regard to microphones, Mr. Belmont stated
that they were being used in security cases and crininal
intelligence matters and that each installation had to be
approved by Mr. Tolson. He also said that microphone
surveillances had been a primary source of information on
organized crime, particularly in regard to La Cosa Nostra.
He added that this information had enabled the FBI to
infiltrate, penetrate, and disrupt organized crime., MNore-
over, it had also provided leads for the development of

live informants.
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Mr. Belmont also pointed out in hig memorandum ‘Li %

that the FBI had digcontinued dissemination of information
from microphone surveillances to the Department of Justice
and United States Attorneys, except when an impending
murder was involved. This policy had been adopted following
’tha leak of information from the Department, which expoaed
the ¥BI microphone surveillance at the Fremont Hotel in

Las Vegas in larch, 1963. The Director approved the
policies outlined by Mr. Belmont.

¥r. Katzenbach to Approve All hiérophone Surveillances

Attorney Goneral Katzenbach, in a conversation
with the Director on March 30, 1965, stated that he would
like to set up a procedure, similar to that in effect
concerning technical surveillances, whereby he would be
advised by the Bureau of microphone surveillance installa-
tions. (Exhibitg3) On the same day, the Director sent a
menorandum to the Attorney General which contained the
following:

*In line with your suggestion this
moraning, X have already set up the
procedure similar to requesting of
authority for phone taps to be

utilized in requesting authority
for the placement of microphones.
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In other words, I shall forward to
you from time to time requests for
authority to install microphones
where deemed imperative for your
consideration and approval or
disapproval, Furthermore, I have
instructed that, where you have
approved either a phone tap or the
installation of a microphone, you

be advised when such ig discontinued
if 4in less than six months and, if
not discontinued in less than six
months, that a pew request be
subnitted by me to you for extension
of the telephone tap or microphone

Aorudess T Yo ke e 1 - Y.L AL d £ 4%
installation," (Exhibit84)

On May 6, 1965, the Director and Mr, Belmont
discussed microphone and technical surveillances with
Attorney General Katzenbach, (Exhibitgs At the outset,
the Attorney General stated that he was not concerned about
the use of these techniques in security cases, He stated
that he agreed with the Director's position, originally
presented to Attbrney General Tom Clark, that all technical
surveillances used throughout the Federal Government should

be approved by the Attorney General

= el gl WA b -~

He then sugpested the
degirability of channeling all these Federal Government
technical surveillances to the FBI for ceantral control and
handling,

The Director argued successfully against this
proposal by stating that, as the FBI had learned through



experience, it is necessary to hold knowledge of these

gurveillances to an abgolute minimum., It was further

and microphone surveillances was confined to him and his
"office stafr, except where prosecution was being considered
in a particular case.
During this discussion, the Attorney General
expressed concern that the Department and the Bureau
night be embarrassed in court over the use of microphone

surveillances involving trespass in hoedlum cases. In

answer to a question, the Attorney General was advised
that approximately 95 per cent of the micxoéhone installa.
tions involved trespass.

The Attorney General was advised that these
nicrophones were nocessgary unless he wanted to cut back
on the attack against organized crime. It was pointed out
that La Cosa Nostra is a powerful group which spearheadgs
organized crime. It has immense power through corruption,
graft, and influcnce 1; political and law enforcement circles.
It wields power over its nenbershiﬁ and associates through

fear. It constitutes a menace to the welfare of the




country because of its power and influence, and has been
gurrounded by an sura of invincibility. -
Mr. Entzenbach was reminded that the FBI had
been waging an all-.out attack on La Coga Nostra. In
this attack, microphone surveillances had been invaluable
“ 4n providing intelligence information leading to
identiticafion of La Cosa Nostra members, and information
concerning their areas of influence, their organization,

and their activities.

Attorney General Discontinues All !licrophone Surveillances

The Attorney General, on July 12, 1965, informed
the Director that he would like to have all nicrophone
surveillances suspended at that timoe, because of the
pressure being brought to bear, particularly on the Internal
Rovenue Service, by the United States Senate Subcommittes
on Adminigtrative Practice and Procedure headed by

Senator Long of UMiggouri. (Exhibitgg The Attorney Goneral
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in his memorandum dated July 14, 1965, recording
his conversation with the Attorney General on July 12,

1965, the Director enunciated Bureau policy. In so doing,

he stated:

"In view of the growing delicacy in this whole field, I
ad %l I wmawmea wmalaisadbamsd o snemasrs wamsmsasds FPaw Samnhndsiandl
Whidd UG LUVLIU AVIUVLAULY VW GPpPLAUITIEG LA TLHUVE WO 4V Yo LlUMAivwidaA

surveillances until the atmosphere has been clarified.

- "] realize the value of technical surveillances as well
as of microphone installations, both in our security
and in our crime investigations, but if it be the will
of Congress and the desire of the Attorney General
that they be completely suspended, we will, of course,
have to comply with 1it."

Attorney General Apain Authorizes Microphone Surveillances in
SEcurity (ases

In response to several requests from the Bureau
for guidelines in the use of special investigative
techniques, Attorney General Katzenbach, by memorandum dated
September 27, 1965, made the following statements on

microphone surveillances:

“"There are many instances where the use of portable micro-
phones or portable recorders are necessary and appropriate
and do not involve trespass or questions of admissibility
of evidence or legality. WVWhere such questions are not
raised 1 believe the Bureau should continue to use these
techniques in cases where you believe it appropriate with-
out further authorization from me. Again, I am aware

that such techniques have been judiciously used in the

past, and while they may have been abused by other agencies,




N

I do not believe they have been abused by the Bureau
_1n any instance.

"The use of wiretaps and microphones involving trespass
present nore difficult problems because of the inad-
misaibility of any evidence obtained in court cases and
because of current judicial and public attitudes
regarding their use. It is ny understanding that such
devices will not be used without my authorizatl on,
althoush in emergency circunstances they may be used
gubject to my later ratification. At this time I

™ believe it decirable that all such techniques be confined
to the gathering of intelligeace in national security
ratters, and I will continue to approve all such requests
in the future as I have in the pagt. I see no need to
curtalil any such activities in the national security
field.

"It is also my belief that there are occasions outside
of the strict definition of national security (for
example, organized crime) when it would be appropriate
to use such technigques for intelligence purposces.
However, in the light of the present atmosphere I
bolieve that efforts in the immedia te future should
be confined to national security. I realize that

this restriction will hanper our efforts agalnst

organized crime and will require a redoubled eifort ~ ‘//
on the part of the Bureau to develop intelligence N
through other means.”" (Exhibitg87y) 2;;*1\\_

Current Bureau Policy on Microphone Surveillances, 1966

After the Attorney General again granted the FBI

b P e A R

ne surveilliances to gather i

suthority to use microph
in national security matters, the Bureau, following the

procedure establis hed by Mr. Katzenbach to obtain hig
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In an October 29, 1965, memorandum dealing with
the Long Committee, the Bureau's use of wire taps and
microphone surveillances was revieved for the Director.

“ (Exhibit 8 On this memorandum the Director noted,

In accordance with the Director's instructions,
2ll microphone surveillances in security cases were dis-
continued on November 1, 1965, because all of them used

There were, of course, no microphone

survelllances on criminal cases at this time because they
had been discontinued at the Attorney General's request in
July, 1965,

After November 1, 1965, the Attorney Gemeral
and the Directoi- approved a limited number of microphone

gurveillances in security cases which did not involve
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gurveillances were reviewed on an individual basis, and

tho Director ordered them to be discontinued.

Pregidontial Memorandum of June 30, 1965

mental attorneys conforred regarding a Presidential
momorandum, dated June 30, 1965, which dealt wifh technical
and nicrophone sur\roillanc'es. (Exiaibit 9@) This memorandun,
- addressed to all hoads of oexecutive departments and agencies,
establighed strict guidelines for tho use of technical sur-
veillances, principally the obtaining of approval from the
Conars
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complete inventory of all mechanical and electronic equip-

mont capable of intercepting telephone conversations.




Because the
Attorney GCeneral an& consulted with the Department regarding
th; use of these surveillance techniques, the Departmental
representatives stated that the Bureau was already complying
with the Presidential memorandum and that it would not be

necessary to submit an inventory of equipment,

Attorncy General Katzenbach Preoared to Stand Behind FBI

Puring December, 1965, newspaper and other sources
brought to the attention of the Bureau that former Attorney
General Robert F, Kennedy had allegedly stated that he
never authorized the use of microphone surveillances iﬁ
FBI investigations of organized crime,

By memorandum from the Director to the Attorney
General, dated January 5, 1966, refereﬁce was made to state-
ments in the press which indicated that former Attorney
General Kennedy and Departmental officials had not been aware
of the FBI's use of microphones in the investipgation of
-orga.nized crime. (Exhibit9]) The Director then set forth
facts which 1llustrated that Mr. Kennedy and Departmental

officials were on notice that the FBI was utilizing




microphone surveillances in its investigation of organized
crine. These facts have been incorporated into an eariier
section of this brief entitled, "Tenure of Att
Rebert Kennedy, 1961-1964.%

In & menorandum dated January 13, 1966; Attorney
q&eneral Katzenbach referred to the relationship between
formor Attorney General Kennedy and the FBI in regard to
the use of nicrophone surveillances in the investigation
of organized crime. (Exhibit :92) lr. Katzenbach stated
that lir. Kenncdy had informed him, at the time of the

original Las Vegas law suit against the telephone company,

nicrophone surveillances against organized crime.

Mr. Katzenbach stated, however, he believed, '"that the
actions of the FBI in this area were in any event justified
on the basis of understandings between the Bureaun and prior
{pre-1961) Attorneys General. I am prepared to stand behind

those actionsg.”




ATTORNEYS GENERAL SINCE 1924

Attorney General

Harlan F. Stone
John G. Sargent
William D. Hitchell
Homer 8. Curmings

Robert H.:Jackson

Francis Biddle

Ten €. Clark

J. Howard McGrath
James P. McGranery
Herbert Brownell, Jr.

William P. Rogers

Robert F. Kennedy

Nicholas deB. Eatzenbach

Sworn In Resigned President
4/7/24 3/1/25 Coolidge
3/18/25 3/5/29 Coolidge
3/5/29 3/4/33 Hoover
3/4/33 1/2/39 Roosevelt
1/2/39 1/18/40 Roosevelt
1/18/40  7/10/41 Roosevelt
9/5/41 6/30/45 Roosevelt

| Trunan

- 7/1/45 8/24/49 Trumen
8/24/49 4/7/52 Truman
5/27/52 1/20/53 Truman

.1/21/53 10/23/57 Eisenhower
11/8/57 1/13/61 Eigenhower
1/21/61 9/3/G4 .Kegngﬁy

Johnson
2/13/65 Johnson
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THE LONG COMMITTER

In early 1965, the United States Senate Subcommittee
on Administrative Practice and Procedure, headed by Senator
Edvard V. Long of Missouri and popularly known as the
Long Committee, began inquifies into Federal encroachments
on citizens' privacy. The Committee's early inquiries |
centered largely on the use of electronic surveillances

by the Internal Revenue Service and that agency received ("Iggigggg

considerable adverse publicity as a result of these hearings

{59y KeERIEREcASERE ) o olse" 1 BEE Qsigseog %ﬁs&a;slﬁubcoga%ﬁtesngge gnipis

FSession, Part I, Eeginnipg in early 1966, and with the ‘Director's
31963, p.:gproval Assistant to the Director Deloach and Assistant
Director Gale conferred with Senator Long and with the
Committee's Chief Counsel Bernard Fensterwald, Jr., to
present to them a factual account of the Bureau's strictly
limited use of electronic surveillances under tightly |
controlled administrative procedures. (Exhibit 95)
Following these conferences, the Director sent
Senator Long a letter dated January 20, 1966. (Exhibit 96)
In this letter, the Director expressed his appreciation for

the opportunity to work with the Senator and his Committee

stafif and for the opportunity to subuit to them for their

close scrutiny the FBI's policies and procedures regarding




On April 25, 1966, Senator Long advised Mr. DeLoach that
he had no intention whatsoever of holding committee hearings regarding
the FBI's use of listening devices. (Exhibit 97) The Senator
repeated an earlier statement that, at the right psychological time,
he, intended to release to the press the Director's letter of
January 20, 1966, and a statement from the Committee absoclving the
FBI of any wrongdoing in its use of microphones and wire #aps'.
According to Senator Long, the time for releasing the Direétor's
letter and the Committee's statement was not then propitious because
newspapermen, such as Drew Pearson and David Kraslow, were pressuring
him to hold public hearings concerning the FBI's use of electronic
eavesdropping dévices. Since Senator Long had not made these
releases as of July 11, 1966, he apparently feels that the time

is still not propitious,.
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